
MINUTES OF MEETING OF NORTH LAKE COUNTY  1 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2025 2 

 3 

A meeting of the North Lake County Hospital District (NLCHD) was held on September 4 

11, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. in the Lake County Commission Chambers, Administration Building, 5 

315 W. Main Street, Tavares, Florida. 6 

 7 

Mr. Trueman Hurley, Chairman, requested that they take a moment of silence in memory 8 

for Mr. Charlie Kirk.  He then called the meeting to order. 9 

 10 

Bishop Steve Yates, Pastor and Founder of Frontier Church, gave the Invocation and led 11 

the Pledge of Allegiance. 12 

 13 

ROLL CALL 14 

Ms. Meredith Kirste, Attorney for the NLCHD, called the roll to ascertain the Trustees 15 

present for the meeting, with the following members in attendance: Ms. Marie Aliberti, 16 

Mr. Thomas Hansing, Mr. Ricky Harper, Mr. Trueman Hurley, and Ms. Barbara Price.   17 

 18 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 19 

On a motion by Ms. Aliberti, seconded by Mr. Hansing, and carried unanimously by a vote 20 

of 5-0, the NLCHD Board approved the Minutes of July 17, 2025. 21 

 22 

Ms. Price did not believe that she received anything but an agenda beforehand. 23 

 24 

Ms. Kirste indicated that the minutes were sent out earlier, and then the packet was sent in 25 

the current week or on the previous Friday; furthermore, the reports had been sent on the 26 

previous Tuesday. 27 

 28 

PRESENTATION OF QUARTERLY AUDITS  29 

Mr. Matt White, with Crippen and Co., said that included in the packet was the quarterly 30 

report of agreed upon procedures. 31 

 32 

Mr. Farlen Halikman, Partner with Forvis Mazars, stated that he reviewed the providers’ 33 

submissions for the NLCHD and ensured that they were documented the way they were 34 

supposed to be to be paid.  He stated that he had provided the March 2025 report that 35 

included what was submitted and the amounts that would be paid to each of the providers.  36 

He added that they did the same procedures as they had done in the past, and that they had 37 

been asked to do an additional procedure to verify that the indigent party was in the country 38 

legally. 39 

 40 

Ms. Price commented that normally at this time they had the reports to June 30, and she 41 

asked what happened. 42 

 43 

Mr. Halikman replied that one provider had just submitted their June 2025 numbers, and 44 

that his organization had not been able to finalize it; however, everyone else was finalized, 45 

and he had the numbers for June 2025, noting that he could provide an estimate of $800,000 46 

unclaimed carryover that the NLCHD would have, barring anything unforeseen. 47 



North Lake County Hospital District 

September 11, 2025 

Page 2 

Mr. White mentioned that included were the submissions from LifeStream Behavioral 1 

Center, and that their unfunded portion was listed as $362,000, though the NLCHD did not 2 

fund LifeStream for fiscal year (FY) 2024 or 2025 directly; rather, 100 percent of their 3 

funding went to their low income pool (LIP) funding.  He clarified that the NLCHD paid 4 

the full $1.236 million to the State on LifeStream’s behalf, and that the carryforward would 5 

not be the full $800,000, noting that it would be less $300,000.  He indicated that he would 6 

update the carryforward so that at the next meeting where they would hopefully have an 7 

approved final millage and budget, that budget would have an updated actual carryforward. 8 

 9 

Mr. Hansing inquired if the Board would receive this via email prior to the next meeting. 10 

 11 

Mr. White confirmed this, and added that the budget worksheet scenario would be included 12 

and be more accurate with less speculation regarding the submissions. 13 

 14 

Ms. Price asked if the NLCHD was looking at between $450,000 and $500,000. 15 

 16 

Mr. White said that this was correct, and that they had a $500,000 carryforward built into 17 

the budget worksheet; therefore, it may be close to their estimate.  He asked the Board to 18 

acknowledge that this number would likely change, at least to be more specific, noting that 19 

it may not materially change.  He reiterated that the Board would have the most accurate 20 

information before making their final decisions.  21 

 22 

On a motion by Mr. Harper, seconded by Ms. Aliberti and carried unanimously by a vote 23 

of 5-0, the NLCHD Board approved the quarterly audits.  24 

 25 

ADDITIONAL REQUESTS FOR FUNDING 26 

There were no additional requests for funding at this time. 27 

 28 

RECITATION FOR THE RECORD 29 

Ms. Kirste announced for the record that the name of the taxing authority was the North 30 

Lake County Hospital District, that the rollback rate was 0.3859 mills, and that the 31 

percentage was an increase over the property tax levy of 116.61 percent over the rollback 32 

rate of 0.3859 mills.  She indicated that this was reflected on Resolution 2025-01. 33 

 34 

WAIVER OF THE READING OF THE ENTIRE PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS 35 

On a motion by Ms. Aliberti, seconded by Mr. Harper and carried unanimously by a vote 36 

of 5-0, the NLCHD Board approved to read the proposed Resolutions 2025-01 and 2025-37 

02 by title only. 38 

 39 

PUBLIC COMMENT – RESOLUTION 2025-01 FOR SETTING THE MILLAGE 40 

Ms. Kirste read the title of Resolution 2025-01, providing for the adoption of the millage 41 

rate for the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year (FY). 42 

 43 

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment. 44 

 45 

Mr. Bob Wille, a resident of the City of Fruitland Park, indicated that in the 1960s, their 46 

more rural and agricultural based citizens of north Lake County chose to ensure access to 47 



North Lake County Hospital District 

September 11, 2025 

Page 3 

healthcare for their poorest residents by creating this special taxing district.  He relayed 1 

that the District provided funds to help cover treatment costs for families, single mothers 2 

and children who could not afford the care.  He opined that the community was 3 

significantly less rural currently, and that the economy had shifted from agriculture in those 4 

60 years.  He indicated that his primary objection to this budget proposal was University 5 

of Florida (UF) Health Leesburg Hospital’s request for a 41 percent increase in funding to 6 

$4.5 million from the generosity of the taxpayers while eliminating the hospital’s maternal 7 

child health unit.  He opined that this resulted in the reduction of a critical healthcare 8 

service to the community, as well as the potential risk of life to expectant mothers and their 9 

unborn children, thereby doing the opposite of what this tax district was founded for.  He 10 

relayed that this unit provided for all pregnant mothers from 20 weeks to after delivery 11 

with two operating triage rooms, and he questioned the consequences for these needed 12 

services that were previously provided by UF Health Leesburg Hospital.  He expressed 13 

concerns for no delivery of babies, and for emergency deliveries being diverted to 14 

AdventHealth Waterman in the City of Tavares or Orlando Health in South Lake or the 15 

City of Ocala.  He opined that they needed to encourage and support families who desired 16 

to have children, and he relayed his understanding that the Board had chosen to increase 17 

the millage rate by 10 percent, raising the revenue from the previous year by about 19.4 18 

percent or $1.6 million out of a current budget of about $8.4 million.  He encouraged the 19 

Board to ask UF Health Leesburg Hospital to reinstate that unit for the community. 20 

 21 

Ms. Price was unsure if the Board was aware of this before they had their proposed budget 22 

meeting. 23 

 24 

Mr. Phil Braun, Vice President and General Counsel for UF Health Central Florida, opined 25 

that it was not an easy decision to be made, but that the county was not without services.  26 

He indicated that they worked closely with AdventHealth Waterman, which was nine miles 27 

from UF Health Leesburg Hospital, and that the idea to consolidate services was thought 28 

to be best due to the declining volume of patients that they were seeing.  He opined that 29 

AdventHealth Waterman was capable of absorbing this, and he relayed that UF Health 30 

Leesburg Hospital had lost obstetrician and gynecologist (OB) physicians.  He clarified 31 

that they were private doctors who had left in a significant number, and that they went from 32 

nine OB physicians to three.  He specified that the majority of the deliveries were done by 33 

one OB physician, and that they were beyond retirement age.  He said that these were 34 

factors that UF Health Leesburg Hospital had to consider for if they would be able to 35 

provide the best OB services, or if it was better for the county to consolidate those services.  36 

He indicated that he understood the pushback, and he clarified that no funding from the 37 

NLCHD had ever been used to pay for labor and delivery services because those patients 38 

did not qualify due to most of them having some type of insurance payment.  He opined 39 

that they were not a rural community, but that they were also not an industry community 40 

and that they did not have industry in the City of Leesburg.  He stated that the largest 41 

employer in the City of Leesburg was the hospital, and that he could not understand why 42 

the reaction was to punish or hurt hospital services.  He relayed that UF Health Leesburg 43 

Hospital currently had a negative operating budget, and opined that hurting this would 44 

further hurt the services provided.  He mentioned that when the hospital had brought its 45 

number, this was the number they felt confident that they could provide services for.  He 46 

added that they would not receive that funding if they did not provide services to those 47 



North Lake County Hospital District 

September 11, 2025 

Page 4 

indigent patients, and that this was their best estimate.  He said that AdventHealth 1 

Waterman was closer to the City of Orlando and a more commercial payor mix, and that 2 

on the other side of UF Health Leesburg Hospital was South Lake, which he opined was a 3 

growing area.  He opined that the industry and jobs were being moved to the outer edges 4 

of Lake County, and that those areas had larger hospitals, noting that AdventHealth was 5 

building another hospital in the City of Minneola that would be even closer to the City of 6 

Leesburg.  He clarified that UF Health Leesburg Hospital wanted to ensure that the 7 

community was left with services, and that they were confident about this.  He explained 8 

that their emergency departments (EDs) would still be open, and that they would still treat 9 

patients regardless of the payor mix.  He opined that the only reason why UF Health 10 

Leesburg Hospital had its health services was due to the formation of the NLCHD, and that 11 

it allowed them to bring open heart programs and stroke programs that would never be in 12 

a community like the City of Leesburg.  He opined that at one time, this hospital had the 13 

third largest open heart program in the state due to the NLCHD and having a healthy margin 14 

and bottom line.  He also relayed that having this allowed them to reinvest into their people, 15 

equipment and services to make them better for everyone, and he hoped that the Board felt 16 

comfortable that there were still great options in the community. 17 

 18 

Ms. Price indicated concerns for it possibly taking 20 minutes to travel nine miles to 19 

AdventHealth Waterman, and for a mother who was getting ready to deliver a child in an 20 

emergency situation potentially losing that child due to this. 21 

 22 

Mr. Braun opined that these were fair concerns, and he relayed that many hospitals had 23 

closed OBs in communities; furthermore, there were many places without hospitals or OB.  24 

He opined that their ED physicians were very capable, and said that they were trained in 25 

this type of item.  26 

 27 

Ms. Price expressed concerns for a mother having to go to the emergency room at UF 28 

Health Leesburg Hospital due to not having another option. 29 

 30 

Mr. Braun reiterated that the ED doctor was trained and capable of addressing this. 31 

 32 

Ms. Price inquired if they would still have the facility to care for that baby if it was born 33 

early. 34 

 35 

Mr. Braun clarified they did not have this currently, and that high risk pregnancies had 36 

never come to UF Health Leesburg Hospital.  He added that they had never been capable 37 

and were not licensed for it, and that they would not be allowed to do this.  He opined that 38 

most of these types of high risk pregnancies were known ahead of time and that those 39 

patients went to the City of Orlando currently.  He reiterated that there were not physicians, 40 

and opined that they had to consolidate where the physicians went and that physicians had 41 

a challenging time being on staff at multiple hospitals.  He indicated that if the hospital 42 

thought that they could reinstate the service in a manner that was helpful to the community, 43 

then they would do this. 44 

 45 

Mr. Hansing inquired why there were not doctors at UF Health Leesburg Hospital to deliver 46 

babies. 47 



North Lake County Hospital District 

September 11, 2025 

Page 5 

Mr. Braun opined that this was a question for the Leesburg City Commission. 1 

 2 

Mr. Hansing indicated his understanding that if UF Health Leesburg Hospital had 3 

significant surplus, it could buffer this. 4 

 5 

Mr. Braun said that it was not just OB physicians, and opined that the school systems were 6 

not the greatest.  He opined that the big city called them, and that many of the hospitals 7 

and physician practices in the City of Orlando, where they had a large commercial payor 8 

mix, could fund them.  He added that physicians’ salaries were not decreasing, and that 9 

there was a shortage in the state with only so many places to go.  He mentioned that UF 10 

Health Leesburg Hospital had some success and that they continued to try. 11 

 12 

Mr. Hansing questioned if birth rates would not generate enough revenue to bring doctors 13 

into the area, therefore shorting UF Health Leesburg Hospital and putting their organization 14 

in a difficult position. 15 

 16 

Mr. Braun opined that this was a large part of it, though he was unsure if the volume in the 17 

county as a whole was as much of an issue as trying to divide it and the physician number 18 

among three hospitals, noting that a fourth hospital would also be in Lake County.  He 19 

opined that South Lake was currently a more attractive place to live, and added that UF 20 

Health Leesburg Hospital did not do trauma and other items because much healthcare was 21 

becoming regional.  He stated that they had highly qualified emergency room physicians, 22 

and that they were less rare than some of the other specialties. 23 

 24 

Ms. Aliberti opined that issues were being recognized earlier in pregnancies, and that 25 

individuals were referred to high risk doctors, noting that those doctors near the north end 26 

of the county were east in the Cities of Sanford and Apopka. 27 

 28 

Ms. Price expressed concerns for this, and she asked to confirm if they did not have 29 

expectant indigent mothers. 30 

 31 

Mr. Braun clarified that they did not qualify because the State had ways to take care of 32 

pregnant women. 33 

 34 

Ms. Price indicated concerns for if a young mother did not know that she was pregnant 35 

until the time of delivery, and for UF Health Leesburg Hospital not delivering babies. 36 

 37 

Mr. Braun said that did not disagree with anyone being concerned, but he opined that the 38 

county had services.  He relayed that people who did not know that they were pregnant 39 

currently came to their ED and did not see an OB physician, noting that deliveries were 40 

also made in ambulances.   41 

 42 

Mr. Hurley indicated that he had been upset about this decision, and he relayed that it would 43 

be nice if they had facilities to address every scenario.  He recalled that none of the funding 44 

that the NLCHD spent went to delivering babies, and opined that their purpose was to take 45 

care of the indigent in the community.  He indicated that this was why he continued to vote 46 

to support hospitals and clinics, opining that they did good work.  He opined that the 47 



North Lake County Hospital District 

September 11, 2025 

Page 6 

NLCHD should not lose sight of the purpose they were there for, and he indicated that he 1 

understood the outcry of citizens because the NLCHD was asking them to spend this 2 

funding; however, he questioned what they would do if they did not take care of the 3 

indigent.  He opined that most people in the county felt the same way, and that they were 4 

compassionate and caring. 5 

 6 

Mr. Wille asked if any of the NLCHD’s indigent care funding went to helping indigent 7 

mothers. 8 

 9 

Mr. Braun indicated that he had the recent submissions checked to confirm that they had 10 

not done this.  He explained that pregnant mothers were covered under the State Medicaid 11 

program, and that anyone who had Medicaid or other insurance did not qualify for the 12 

NLCHD.  He added that the district had strict requirements and that if a patient had any 13 

type of funding source, then they did not qualify. 14 

 15 

Mr. Harper inquired if they would qualify for some of these services after they delivered a 16 

baby. 17 

 18 

Mr. Braun said that this was likely correct if it was outside of being related to the 19 

pregnancy. 20 

 21 

Ms. Price questioned if the NLCHD covered pregnancy services for indigent individuals, 22 

relaying her understanding that they would have to qualify for Medicaid after the fact if 23 

they walked into the hospital and did not know that they were pregnant. 24 

 25 

Mr. Braun clarified that they helped eligible patients get qualified. 26 

 27 

There being no one else who wished to address the Board regarding this matter, the 28 

Chairman closed the floor for public comment. 29 

 30 

On a motion by Ms. Aliberti, seconded by Mr. Harper and carried by a roll-call vote of 3-31 

2, the NLCHD Board approved Resolution 2025-01 setting the tentative millage rate for 32 

the FY 2025-2026 budget year at 0.45 mills.  33 

 34 

Mr. Hansing and Ms. Price voted no. 35 

 36 

PUBLIC COMMENT – RESOLUTION 2025-02 FOR ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET 37 

Ms. Kirste read the title of Resolution 2025-02, providing for the adoption of the proposed 38 

budget for the 2025-2026 budget year. 39 

 40 

The Chairman opened the floor for public comment. 41 

 42 

There being no one who wished to address the Board regarding this matter, the Chairman 43 

closed the floor for public comment. 44 

 45 

On a motion by Ms. Aliberti, seconded by Mr. Harper and carried by a roll-call vote of 3-46 

2, the NLCHD Board approved Resolution 2025-02. 47 



North Lake County Hospital District 

September 11, 2025 

Page 7 

Mr. Hansing and Ms. Price voted no. 1 

 2 

ANY OTHER MATTERS NECESSARY TO ACHIEVE THE AFOREMENTIONED 3 

GOALS 4 

Ms. Kirste relayed that the next meeting would be on September 25, 2025 at 5:30 p.m., and 5 

that Ms. Price had indicated that she would not be able to attend.  She hoped that the other 6 

four Board members could confirm that they would be attending. 7 

 8 

Mr. Hurley commented that it had come to his attention that there was an effort to write 9 

new legislation providing alternative funding for healthcare for indigent persons in Lake 10 

County.  He said that he would entertain a motion to discuss these possibilities. 11 

 12 

Ms. Price stated that she was not willing to do this because they did not know what was in 13 

the packet for the legislation, and remarked that she had heard about this at the legislative 14 

delegation meeting a few weeks prior; furthermore, there had not been any in-depth 15 

conversation about it.  She opined that the NLCHD should not be discussing it until they 16 

knew what was being presented in a bill for the Florida Legislature.  She also opined that 17 

it was not the right time to do this, noting that the legislative session would start in January 18 

2026. 19 

 20 

ADJOURNMENT 21 

The meeting adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 

____________________________________ 26 

Trueman Hurley, Chairman 27 

 28 


